
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 

If you are reading these papers on an electronic device you have saved the Council £11.33 and 
helped reduce the Council’s carbon footprint. 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

 

Adults and Safer City Scrutiny 
Panel 
17 November 2020 

 
Time 
 

6.00 pm Public Meeting? YES Type of meeting Scrutiny 

Venue 
 

Microsoft Teams Meeting 

Membership 
 

Chair Cllr Val Evans (Lab) 
Vice-chair Cllr Simon Bennett (Con) 
 

Labour Conservative  

Cllr Olivia Birch 
Cllr Rupinderjit Kaur 
Cllr Asha Mattu 
Cllr Lynne Moran 
Cllr Anwen Muston 
Cllr John Rowley 
Cllr Zee Russell 
 

Cllr Sohail Khan 
 

 

Quorum for this meeting is three Councillors. 
 

Information for the Public 
 

If you have any queries about this meeting, please contact the Democratic Services team: 

Contact Earl Piggott Smith 
Tel/Email 01902 551251 email:earl.piggott-smith@wolverhampton.gov.uk 
Address Democratic Services, Civic Centre, 1st Floor, St Peter’s Square, 

Wolverhampton WV1 1RL 
 

Copies of other agendas and reports are available from: 
 

Website  http://wolverhampton.moderngov.co.uk/  

Email democratic.services@wolverhampton.gov.uk  

Tel 01902 555046 

 

Some items are discussed in private because of their confidential or commercial nature. These reports 
are not available to the public. 

http://wolverhampton.moderngov.co.uk/
mailto:democratic.services@wolverhampton.gov.uk


 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

 
Agenda 

Page 2 of 2 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

Agenda 
 

Part 1 – items open to the press and public 
 
Item No. Title 

 
1 Welcome and Introductions  
 [The Chair to welcome everyone to the meeting. The Scrutiny Officer will then read 

out a list of those invited to the meeting to confirm who is in attendance.]  
 

2 Meeting procedures to be followed  
 [The Chair will explain how the meeting will proceed, how questions are to be asked 

and any matters of meeting etiquette.] 
 

BUSINESS ITEMS 
 
3 Apologies  
 

4 Declarations of Interest  
 

5 Minutes of previous meeting (15.9.2020) (Pages 3 - 12) 
 [To approve the minutes of the previous meeting as a correct record]  

 

6 Matters arising  
 

DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 
7 Draft Budget and Medium-Term Financial Strategy (report to follow)  
 [James Barlow, Finance Business Partner, to present report] 

 

8 WVSC Social Prescribing Support to Connect project (report to follow)  
 [Linda Stone and Ian Darch, Wolverhampton Voluntary Sector Council, to present 

report] 
 

9 Community and digital solutions to tackle issues of loneliness and social 
isolation (Pages 13 - 18) 

 [Sandra Ashton Jones, Head of Service – Mental Health, to present briefing paper] 
 

10 Corporate Guidance on Equalities Monitoring of Public Services (Pages 19 - 30) 
 [Jin Takhar, Equality, Diversion and Inclusion Manager, and David Pattison, Director 

of Governance, to present briefing paper] 
 

11 Adults and Safer City Scrutiny Panel 2019 20 - Draft Work Programme (Pages 31 
- 42) 

 [Julia Cleary, Scrutiny and Systems Manager, to present report] 
 



[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 

 
Minutes 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

 

Adults and Safer City Scrutiny 
Panel 
Minutes - 15 September 2020 

 

Attendance 
 

Members of the Adults and Safer City Scrutiny Panel 
 
Cllr Olivia Birch 
Cllr Val Evans (Chair) 
Cllr Rupinderjit Kaur 
Cllr Sohail Khan 
Cllr Asha Mattu 
Cllr Lynne Moran 
Cllr Anwen Muston 
Cllr Zee Russell 
 

 
Employees  
Julia Cleary Systems and Scrutiny Manager 
Lynsey Kelly Head of Community Safety 
Earl Piggott-Smith Scrutiny Officer 
Martin Stevens Scrutiny Officer 
David Watts Director of Adult Services 
Becky Wilkinson Head of Service Adult Improvement 

 

 

Part 1 – items open to the press and public 
 

Item No. Title 

 
1 Welcome and Introductions 

Cllr Val Evans, Chair, welcomed everyone to the virtual meeting and advised it was 
being live streamed to the press and public. Cllr Evans advised that she was not 
expecting any exempt or restricted items on the agenda. A recording of the meeting 
would be available for viewing on the Council’s website at a future date. 
 

2 Meeting procedures to be followed 
Cllr Evans explained the protocol to be followed during the meeting for asking 
questions and reminded everyone that microphones should be muted and cameras 
off, unless they have been invited to speak. Earl Piggott-Smith, Scrutiny Officer, 
invited all attendees to introduce themselves to confirm they were present at the 
meeting. 
 

Please note that the following offices were also in attendance at the meeting  
 
David Watt 
Becky Wilkinson  
Lynsey Kelly 
Hannah Pawley 

Page 3

Agenda Item No: 5



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

 
Minutes 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

Julia Cleary 
Martin Stevens 
 

3 Apologies 
Apologies were received from the following member of the panel: 
 

 Cllr John Rowley 

 
4 Declarations of Interest 

There were no declarations of interest recorded. 
 

5 Minutes of previous meeting (28 January 2020) 
The Scrutiny Officer advised the panel that for Agenda Item 7b references to Adult 
Services in the minutes should have been stated as Adult Education Services and 
not Adult Services. 
 

The panel members voted and approved the minutes of the meeting held on 3 
February 2020, subject to the amendment, as being a correct record.  
 

6 Matters arising 
The Scrutiny Officer advised that a briefing paper drafted by Joanne Keatley, Head of 
Adult Education Service, was recently sent to panel members in response to 
comments raised at the meeting on the 28 January 2020. 
 

7 Update on the response of Adult Services to the Covid-19 crisis and future 
plans 
Cllr Evans invited David Watts, Director of Adult Services and Becky Wilkinson, Head 
of Service Adult Improvement to present their report on response of Adult Services to 
the Covid-19 crisis and future plans. 
 

The Director of Adult Services outlined the context for the presentation about 
explained how the service has worked closely with care providers throughout the City 
to manage the response to the Covid 19 pandemic. In addition, the service has also 
worked closely with colleagues in Public Health in developing an approach to 
protecting people, particularly those living in care settings. 
  
The Director of Adult Services detailed the range of specific work done to support 
care providers, for example, regular communication, the provision of sufficient stocks 
of protective equipment and the safe arrangements for the discharge of people from 
hospital to care homes. 
 
The Director of Adult Services advised the panel that he also has responsibility for 
arranging Public Health funerals and the provision of infection prevention personal 
protective equipment to care homes. 
 
The Director of Adult Services commented on the challenges that the service faced 
in providing sufficient supplies of protective equipment stocks towards the end of 
February and during March 2020 at the peak of the pandemic.  
 
 

Page 4



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

 
Minutes 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

The service was able to build on the previous good working relationships with the 
Royal Wolverhampton Hospital trust (RWHT) in managing the discharge of people 
with social care needs back into the community with the added challenge of 
responding to the frequency of new national guidance being issued to the sector.  
 
The panel were reassured that the correct systems were in place to safely discharge 
people from hospital either into their own home or into a non-acute care setting. The 
service has been working extremely closely with the infection prevention team and 
the rapid intervention treatment service managed by RWHT. This work has helped to 
put the service in a good position during a period when the number of Covid 19 
cases was becoming more prevalent both within the care home setting and the wider 
community. The Director of Adult Services advised the panel of the detailed planning 
work ongoing with key partners in care and health sectors to respond the ongoing 
challenges presented by the pandemic. 
 
The Director of Adult Services invited Becky Wilkinson, Head of Service Adult 
Improvement, to outline the specific work on infection prevention control done to 
support residential care homes during the pandemic.  
 
The Head of Service Adult Improvement advised the panel about plans for 
supporting residential care was developed rapidly in response to the outbreak of 
Covid 19, for example the bulk purchasing of protective equipment and the offer of 
infection prevention training to care staff. This work was supported by daily meetings 
with care providers at the start of the outbreak which provided an opportunity to 
discuss any specific concerns.  
A clinical lead has been appointed within each care home with the aim of trying to 
prevent a care resident from needing a hospital visit by looking at safe alternatives 
where they could be treated. This work is supported by other initiatives for example, 
a proactive community swabbing programme. The programme involves training of 
the staff in care homes in how do swabs safely.  
 
The Head of Service Adult Improvement advised that a national portal for care staff 
to book a Covid 19 test opened on 7 September 2020 but where staff are having 
problems getting a test booked, there is a local alternative available. To reduce the 
risk of disease transmission the current focus of the service is on care home staff not 
moving between homes.  
 
The Head of Service Adult Improvement advised the panel of significant challenges 
at the start of the pandemic of getting sufficient stocks of protective equipment where 
it was needed. However, as a result of a collective effort across various Council 
departments considerable progress has been made to resolve this issue. The panel 
was advised that a million pieces of personal protective equipment (PPE) has been 
distributed across the City since the start of the pandemic.   
 
The Head of Service Adult Improvement added that there is expected to be an 
increasing need for PPE throughout the winter as we head into the flu season. A 
strategy is being developed to have access to the necessary funding during this 
period. The strategy has involved further building on the close working relationship 
with local health partners and to provide care home providers with the advice and 
support needed. 
 

Page 5



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

 
Minutes 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

The Head of Service Adult Improvement gave examples of the work done with 
colleagues in the Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) to get all care homes 
registered with an NHS email which has made it easier for them to be updated on 
new guidance quickly. In March the figure was below 50 per cent. 
 
The Government announced the creation of a prevention fund of £600m in May 
2020. Wolverhampton received £3.2m allocation from the fund and of this award 
£2.4m went directly to Care Home providers to pay for infection prevention work as 
per Government guidance. 
 
To receive funding the care home has to be registered on a capacity tracker system 
which requires them to give data on the number of beds and infections to better 
manage the infection. This work has been supported by training provided by the 
CCG with the aim of keeping infection prevention under control in the care home 
sector. The training has covered how to take off PPE and what care staff need to 
know about cleaning the home to reduce the risk of infection transmission.   
 
The Head of Service Adult Improvement advised the panel that the service has 
responsibility for arranging public health funerals when there is no one willing to 
make plans.  The number of public health funerals has increased in quarter one from 
8 to 13 cases. 
 
The Head of Service Adult Improvement advised the panel that currently there are 
686 residents in and care staff in self-isolation on 1 April 2020. At this time there 
were 13 confirmed cases and 160 suspected cases. As at 4 September the number 
of confirmed cases had reduced to 1 and there were 3 suspected cases and 4 
people in self-isolation. 
 
The service is working with the care homes concerned to improve infection 
prevention arrangements and to restrict non-urgent visits which has led to a 
reduction in the number of cases.  
 
The Head of Service Adult Improvement praised the excellent response from the 
social care sector and the whole Council to set up the food distribution hub and the 
work done on the ‘stay safe be kind’ helpline and the important learning gained from 
joint working that will help to improve future practice. 
 
The Director of Adult Services briefed the panel on the changes introduced by the 
Care Act Easements to allow Adult Social Care Directors to make decisions in 
consultation with other interested parties if changes were needed to be made about 
how the service would meet its statutory responsibilities. The Director of Adult 
Services gave examples of how new technology has been used to complete care 
assessments. 
 
The Director of Adult Services advised the panel of the work being done locally in 
response to the increase nationally in the rate of Covid 19 cases and the plans for 
managing a second-wave. The panel were advised of the risk to the City of a local 
lockdown based on the increased number of local cases. The panel were reassured 
that work is being done across the Council and with other providers to better 
understand the potential impact on how services are delivered in the future. 
 

Page 6



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

 
Minutes 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

In view of the changing situation the Council is recommending in guidance to care 
home providers that only essential health related visits or on compassionate grounds 
should be allowed to reduce the risk of spreading the infection.  
 
The Director of Adult Services acknowledged the importance of visits to residents 
from friends and family members but highlighted the need to protect them during a 
period of increasing rates of infection. 
 
The Council is offering care home staff flu jabs as part of it winter planning 
arrangements and is working with public health colleagues to improve testing 
capacity. In addition, a series of provider forums has been setup to allow care staff to 
share their experiences. 
 
The panel thanked both presenters. The panel highlighted the importance of good 
communication to explain to family members the reasons for restricting visits and 
welcomed the work done by the service.  
 
The panel expressed concern about the reported delays in care staff getting test 
results quickly and more generally issues about getting tests booked through the 
national scheme when needed. The panel wanted reassurance that everything is 
being done to prevent the risk of transmission in care homes settings. 
 
The panel also wanted assurance that people who are discharged from hospital to a 
care home are being tested for Covid 19 before they are admitted. 
 
The Head of Service Adult Improvement advised the panel that patients are tested 
for Covid 19 within 48 hours of being discharged from hospital. However, regardless 
of the test results new residents are placed in isolation for 14 days when they move 
from hospital to a different care setting.  In addition, funding from the infection 
prevention fund is available to care home providers to make sure that people are not 
mixing between floors during the first 14 days and that the right processes are in 
place to reduce the risk.  
 
The service is working with homes to avoid people between care homes, unless it is 
considered to be essential. If a care home is not able to meet the needs of a resident 
then arrangements are made for any move to be done safely. 
 
The panel discussed delays in getting test results and wanted an update on the 
current situation. The Head of Service Adult Improvement advised the panel some 
test results are returned in less than 48 hours, but it can take up seven days, 
depending on the when the test swabs are collected.  
 
The Head of Service Adult Improvement advised the panel that the service has 
encouraged care home providers to use the national portal scheme to book a test, 
which is the best way of doing this. In addition, there are local testing arrangements 
which can be used to meet demand. The test kits are delivered by courier and are 
self-administered and then will be collected to be tested. 
 
However, the current challenge is the limits on laboratory testing capacity which has 
been highlighted as a national issue. 
 

Page 7



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

 
Minutes 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

The panel queried the financial support available to minimise the impact on care 
workers who are required to self-isolate and the problems this may cause. Lynsey 
Kelly, Head of Community Safety, advised the panel that £3.2m received by the 
Council for infection prevention fund is allocated on the basis of the number of beds 
in each care home. However, the funds can also be used to pay care staff above 
statutory sick pay levels to top-up a carers wages when they are self-isolating.   
 
Care providers who get money from the infection prevention fund are required to sign 
up to a number of specific conditions about supporting care staff who have to self-
isolate. There is currently a work being done to review how this scheme is working in 
practice. 
 
The panel suggested that the impact of the current guidance to care homes on 
allowing visitors could be added to the work programme for a review at a future 
meeting. A copy could also be shared with the panel for information.  
 
The Director of Adult Services advised the panel that there is a dedicated Council 
website page on the Covid 19 resources which has links to this information.  The 
Council has provided extra guidance to care home providers to help them develop 
safe arrangement and supporting them to do their own risk assessment. The visiting 
arrangements will vary between care homes, but all are expected to follow the latest 
national guidance. 
 
The panel queried if the information on the website is available in other languages or 
have reading difficulties. The Director of Adult Services advised the panel that the 
information is not currently published in different languages but was happy for panel 
to suggest how the Council can work with community groups to translate the 
information that can better their needs. The current information could then be 
translated into a shorter document. The panel were advised the Wolverhampton 
Homes has produced online resources that could be added to the Council website. 
 
The Head of Community Safety in reference to an earlier discussion about financial 
impact on care home staff who are required to self-isolate advised the panel that 
there is a trial scheme for people getting working tax credits or Universal Credit to get 
an extra payment of about £13 a day. The scheme, if considered successful, will be 
rolled out nationally with the aim of supporting people on low wages. 
 
The panel agreed to receive an update on progress in providing information in 
different languages to a future meeting. 
 
The panel discussed the challenge facing people who are cannot book a test locally 
and are having to travel some distance as a result and the specific issue of not being 
able to get children returned to school until they have been tested.  
 
The Director of Adult Services advised the panel that he is leading a group on 
dealing with testing issues and accepted that there is not enough national laboratory 
testing capacity to process samples in a timely manner. The demand for testing slots 
is very high, which is presents a challenge for people who are asymptomatic who 
want to be tested.  
 
 

Page 8



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

 
Minutes 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

The Council is lobbying Government to increase national laboratory testing and 
during a call with the Department of Health and Social Care it was stated that there is 
further work being done to increase testing capacity, but in the short term other local 
arrangements have been made to allow pupils and teachers to be tested. 
 
The panel discussed the work done to reduce the lessen the risk to people who in 
care homes who are most vulnerable. The Director of Adult Services advised the 
panel that the Council has data on the high risks and explained the work with 
colleagues in Public Health around managing individual risks in care homes. In 
addition, work is also being done to think about the risks to black and minority ethnic 
health of care workers.  
 
The aim is to ensure that the workers in these groups are protected and that this is 
supported by having the correct risk assessment plans in place. The learning from 
work done on risk assessments within the Council is being shared with the care 
sector. 
 
Resolved: 
 
The panel agreed to receive an update on progress in providing on line resources on 
Covid 19 in different community languages to a future meeting. 
 

8 Supporting our Community 
Lynsey Kelly, Head of Community Safety, presented a report on the work of the 
community safety team and also the wider work done to support vulnerable people in 
the community since the start of the pandemic.  
 
The Head of Community Safety advised the panel that at the start of the pandemic 
the Government developed a shielding list of chronic vulnerable residents who would 
be required to shield for a period initially of 12 weeks.  However, the Council also 
identified a further 28,000 residents who should be added to the shielding list and 
therefore qualify for national support, for example, food delivery.  
 

The Council has also worked with the CCG to identify other residents who may be 
also be classified as vulnerable who have been added to this list. In total, 80,000 
Wolverhampton residents were identified across the city who may need additional 
support to remain safe during that initial 12-week period. A letter was sent to the 
everyone on the list advising them to be extremely careful when out and about and 
the support available to them, which included providing access to food and medical 
support and health and well-being support if required. 
 
The scheme was expanded later with support from Children's Services to look at 
over 14,000 financially disadvantaged families who were identified as needing more 
support. The Leader of the Council was keen that the welfare of residents was to be 
the main priority during the pandemic. A range of initiatives were quickly introduced 
such as the ‘Stay Safe be Kind’ call centre helpline.  The Head of Community Safety 
highlighted the important role of the community and voluntary sector in supporting 
local residents, for example helping with shopping and the collection of medicine.  
 
The call centre was delivered with the help of redeployed workers across a range of 
different services.  During a three-month period, the call centre received over 16,000 
calls and emails for people wanting support.  

Page 9



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

 
Minutes 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

The valuable contributions of local business, Wolverhampton Homes and 
Wolverhampton Wanderers Foundation Trust in helping to set up the Food 
Distribution Hub was acknowledged. 
 
The Head of Community Safety advised the panel of the range of other initiatives to 
provide information in different languages and to make services accessible to people 
who are deaf and hard of hearing. There is also work being done with other agencies 
across the city to ensure the Council continues to provide essential services to 
children and young people, for example The Virtual Squad and distribution of activity 
packs and games. Base 25 has been commissioned to do outreach work to engage 
with young people on the streets. 
 
The Head of Community Safety advised the panel of work done with colleagues at 
The Haven to offer a range of support to families experiencing domestic abuse. The 
number of reported cases during lockdown was lower than expected and this may 
suggest people were finding it difficult to disclose domestic abuse.  
The number of reported cases has increased since lockdown restrictions were eased 
earlier in the year. The service has work with DCLG and local support services to 
increase the number of emergency bed spaces and also provide extra funding to 
meet extra costs arising from introducing Covid 19 preventative measures. 
 
The Head of Community Safety advised the panel that the service has worked with 
the West Midlands Police and Crime Commissioner on a regional domestic violence 
campaign. The campaign is aimed at encouraging people to report domestic 
violence. In addition, work is being led by the Homelessness Team to ensure that 
suitable accommodation and refuges are available for those who need to leave their 
home. 
 
The Head of Community Safety advised the panel about the range of work done with 
local faith organisations across the City. The work is supported by weekly meetings 
with different groups. 
 
Resolved: 
The panel agreed to note the report. 
 
 

9 Adults and Safer City Scrutiny Panel 2019 20 - Draft Work Programme 
Julia Cleary, Scrutiny and Systems Manager, presented the draft work programme 
and explained the new approach agreed at Scrutiny Board meeting for all panels to 
consider the cross-cutting theme of ‘Connected City’ and digital considerations when 
developing ideas for the work programme.  
 
The Scrutiny and Systems Manager outlined the list of suggested topics for future 
meetings of the panel based on discussions with the Chair and Vice Chair of the 
panel. 
 

The panel were invited to comment on the draft work programme and to suggest 
ideas, following the guidance, of topics that could be added.  
 
The panel suggested that the issue of fly-tipping could be added to the work 
programme due to concerns raised by residents. The issue consider what further 
work can be done to improve the situation.  

Page 10



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

 
Minutes 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

 
The panel suggested that the issue of loneliness and the how technology is being 
used to meet this need could also be added to the panel work programme. The panel 
discussed the importance of people living in care settings having access to personal 
contact to meet their social needs and also the skills needed to use new technology 
to communicate. 
 
The Director of Adult Care Services outlined the workforce changes which have been 
introduced following lockdown and also how the service is having to work differently 
and more flexibly to meet the needs of different groups.  
 
Resolved 
 
The panel agreed to note the report and the suggestions for future work programme 
topics. 
 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Title: Community and digital solutions to tackle   Date: 9.11.2020 
issues of loneliness and social isolation  
        
 
Prepared by: Sandra Ashton Jones Job Title: Head of Service – Mental Health 
      
 
Intended 
Audience:  
 
 

 

1.0 Purpose 

 

1.1 The purpose of this briefing paper is to provide information on some of the work being 

undertaken in the city by the Council and partner agencies to reduce social isolation 

and loneliness amongst adults using both community and digital initiatives. 

 

1.2 To outline priority areas for future work in the city. 

 

2.0 Background 

 

2.1 A new approach to scrutiny was agreed at Scrutiny Board on 14 July 2020. Scrutiny 

Board agreed a cross cutting theme for all panels and the agreed theme was 

‘Connected City’. Connectivity and digital considerations are to be considered as part 

of all items added to the work programme. An identified theme for this scrutiny panel 

is improving isolation and loneliness among adults and their ability to remain at home 

longer or to be discharged home. 

 

2.2 Loneliness is described as a feeling that occurs when there is something missing or 

lacking in a person’s social relationships, or when the quality or frequency of their 

relationships is less satisfying than they would like. A person can still feel lonely even 

when surrounded by many people. Social isolation is when someone lacks social 

ties or connections to a community. People can also experience emotional isolation 

where a personal or intimate relationship is missing.  

 

2.3 Loneliness and social isolation is not a phenomenon specific to Wolverhampton. There 

is growing awareness of the problem of loneliness and unwanted social isolation 

across the UK. Recent studies have suggested that around 1.2 million older people in 

the UK are believed to be struggling with severe loneliness and chronic isolation. A 

study carried out by The Co-op and British Red Cross “Trapped in a bubble” (2016) 

identified that loneliness does not only affect older people.  
 

Internal  ☐ Partner organisation  ☐ Public  ☒ Confidential  ☐ 

Page 13

Agenda Item No: 9

https://www.co-operative.coop/campaigning/loneliness


 

 

 

2.4 It suggested that ordinary life events can be triggers for loneliness such as being an 

informal carer, becoming new parents, relationship breakdown both of couples and 

within families, bereavement, loss of job, retirement, financial insecurity, health, 

mental ill health and mobility issues. Stigma and prejudice can also exacerbate 

feelings of loneliness and isolation, often experienced by people with disabilities and 

mental ill health, people from black, minority ethnic and LGBT+ communities. 

 

2.5 Adult Social Care with Public Health and multi-agency partners including Health, 

Wolverhampton Voluntary Sector Council, West Midlands Fire Service and 

Wolverhampton Homes had begun to map the levels of social isolation and loneliness 

in the city and work together with local people to develop local solutions. Whilst this 

project was effectively put on hold due to the outbreak of Covid-19 and implementation 

of lockdown restrictions, agencies have continued to develop ways to respond to and 

reduce loneliness and social isolation. Many of these developments have included 

digital solutions. 

 

3.0 Progress, options, discussion, etc. 

 

3.1 Prior to the introduction of lockdown restrictions, the majority of social care contacts 

with people were face-to-face, either visits to an individual’s home or at community 

locations including day services, respite centres, Talking Points in libraries, community 

centres, hospital departments, etc. This way of working stopped over-night and 

alternative solutions had to be identified. Fortunately, Adult Social Care had previously 

introduced agile working and all employees had been issued with laptops or tablets. 

Immediately prior to lockdown, staff were requested to work from home to ensure they 

had the necessary equipment and connectivity to continue working. 

 

3.2 Social care staff continued to undertake conversations with individual and carers using 

telephone and video calls, and where essential face to face visits were required, these 

have continued to take place with staff following social distancing rules and wearing 

PPE. Where appropriate, visits take place in public spaces, parks, gardens and on 

doorsteps. The Council’s social media platforms, Facebook, Twitter and Instagram are 

updated daily with information, in addition newsletters and regular briefings are 

emailed and posted to carers in the city as it is recognised that not everyone accesses 

information via the internet. 

 

3.3 For many people their usual day activities and respite care ceased due to lockdown, 

in order to reduce the risk of loneliness, weekly wellbeing calls were and are still being 

made to individuals and their carers. The Carers Team have completed 1338 carers 

conversations and offer carers regular wellbeing calls, and have connected carers to 

other online services, including shopping services, community groups, online library 

service.   

 

3.4 Activities are taking place virtually including coffee and chat meetings via Zoom, yoga 

sessions, quizzes and on-line computer training. As In-house day services and respite 

closed during lockdown, a YouTube channel was set up with weekly uploads including 

Makaton signed stories, cooking, keep fit and craft activities. Please use the  link below 

to view City of Wolverhampton Council Virtual adult support link 

Page 14

https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.youtube.com%2Fchannel%2FUCkKAavW0hrAq4uGDz1neeQQ%3Fview_as%3Dsubscriber&data=04%7C01%7CSandra.Ashton-Jones%40wolverhampton.gov.uk%7C2dee3c021e8e4937816e08d87b400d36%7C07ebc6c370744387a625b9d918ba4a97%7C0%7C0%7C637394862312584805%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=RXikk0I80bl8ptEUYt%2BZrWHdJEmPAuizc2O1fQvJ4tk%3D&reserved=0


 

 

 

 

3.5 For many people virtual activities are not enough and, in those situations, support 

workers undertake face to face doorstep visits and take gifts and activities for people 

to do at home. In addition, weekly telephone calls are made to people who ordinarily 

use in house day and respite services and their carers to check on wellbeing.  

 

3.6 Many people living in the community do not have access to IT equipment or smart 

phones, the Council has set up a Digital Inclusion project and is rolling out a digital 

lending scheme. This scheme will initially lend 50 devices, but plans are to expand 

this to libraries and other voluntary organisations. The device lending scheme will also 

include connectivity via sim cards for 3 months (10 from the original pilot have been 

allocated for carers/vulnerable adults).  In addition, ward funds have been secured in 

5 wards to pay for sim cards to enable school children to get online for online 

learning.  If people have got the devices but not the connectivity, the project can look 

at supporting through the scaled-up scheme too. The pilot will focus on helping people 

get online to access learning, employment support, services and reduce isolation. 

Following learning from the pilot, there is a plan to scale up the initiative by involving 

additional partners and growing the number of devices available to residents across 

the city.  There are other national initiatives such as the Good Things Foundation who 

during Covid-19 have issued connected devices to people and families who cannot 

afford to purchase their own and who are vulnerable. They also provide the support to 

get people set up and improve their digital skills. The Council is working on a place-

based approach which includes encouraging more organisations to sign up to the 

Online Centre scheme run by Good Things Foundation and build on some of their 

initiatives. 

 

3.7 Due to the pandemic and government guidance, families have not been able to visit 

their relatives in care homes, this has been a very difficult and distressing time for 

many. All care homes have been offered the option to obtain an iPad via NHS, in total 

60 care homes in Wolverhampton have been approved to receive at least one iPad to 

help residents stay in touch with family. New Government guidance issued 

04/11/2020 encourages and supports care providers to offer safe visiting 

opportunities, the Council is supporting care providers in the city to implement 

the new guidance. 

 

3.8 In addition, service providers and social workers have developed creative ways to 

help combat loneliness and social isolation during the pandemic, examples include; 

 

 A day centre which has been closed has been offering on-line singing classes 

and music classes.   

 

 A day service is offering on-line cooking classes. 

 

 Another has set up Zoom sessions for those that ordinarily attend the Day Centre 

so they could keep in-touch with each other.  

 

Page 15



 

 

 

 Where a day service closed an individual used a Direct Payment to employ a PA 

who accompanied them on walks around West Park enabling the person to get 

out of their house and maintain emotional and physical wellbeing.            

 

3.9 The Stay Safe Be Kind helpline is still operational through the Council’s Customer 

Services and is continuing to provide signposting and referrals to befriending and 

social prescribing through Wolverhampton Voluntary Sector Council. In addition, the 

Benefits Helpline maximises benefits which improves financial stability which can 

reduce isolation and loneliness.  

 

3.10 During lockdown, Wolverhampton Homes made 3662 calls to tenants aged 70+, 

resulting in 300 requests for additional support, many being in relation to needing help 

with shopping, requests for food parcels and for assistance with collecting 

prescriptions.  Some of the call handlers related concerns about tenants being lonely 

so these were referred to Wolverhampton Homes Befriending Service.  There are 

approximately 100 people now using the Befriending Service with weekly calls being 

made by volunteers.  

 

3.11 The Community Support Team connected with 962 people since the middle of March 

2020.  During lockdown they worked closely with community groups, volunteer 

organisations, local shops and they developed a prescription collection and delivery 

service with Healthwatch which was successful helping people and carers get their 

medication quickly without the carer having to leave the person they cared for.  In 

addition to the Stay Safe Be Kind Helpline, a joint project between, the Council, 

Wolverhampton Homes and Citizens Advice Wolverhampton was set up to consider 

issues that may arise out of the Covid-19 crisis, such as more indebtedness / poverty 

/ child concerns, loneliness and isolation.  Members including Children’s Services, 

Adult Services, WH Money Smart and Housing Support, Welfare Rights Service, 

Housing Options and Citizens Advice Bureau were invited to identify ways in which 

families can be supported with the aim of preventing homelessness.  It was agreed 

with CWC that the Covid-19 Recovery Helpline number would be repurposed for this 

project. 
  

4.0 Future work 

 

4.1 Loneliness and social isolation had been identified as issues of concern prior to Covid-

19, however the impact of social distancing measures and reduction in face to face 

opportunities to socialise, connect with family, friends, colleagues and neighbours and 

to take part in physical activity and everyday cultural and faith experiences has meant 

even more people of all ages have experienced loneliness and social isolation. It is 

essential that we learn from people’s experiences, conversations need to take place 

with local people to identify gaps, what has worked well and what areas need to be 

strengthened. In addition to attending a number of stakeholder forums there are also 

projects and strategies being developed to help tackle loneliness and social isolation 

in Wolverhampton, examples include; 

  

Page 16



 

 

 

 A multi-agency task and finish group has been set up to explore existing 

initiatives in the city and to consider the work being undertaken regionally utilising 

digital solutions to combat social isolation and loneliness.  

 

 A city-wide technology-enabled care strategy is being developed. This will 

provide opportunities for technology to increase independence and capacity for 

maintaining people at home, reduce impact of loneliness and social isolation, 

provide carers with effective support, respite and peace of mind, enable agencies 

to provide improved and more focused care delivery and facilitate earlier hospital 

discharge and reduction of admissions to residential care and re-admissions to 

hospital.  
 

 Work is planned to set up a carer befriending service with carer volunteers. This 

will be an excellent way for carers to share experiences and support other carers 

particularly for carers experiencing loneliness. 

 

 The Council, Public Health and the Black Country Healthcare Foundation Trust 

(BCHFT) are developing a project which will be aimed at keeping people well in 

communities. This is still in the early stages but a summit with partners is 

planned in the next month. The BCFHT continue to run a twenty-four-hour mental 

health helpline for people to call if they are feeling increased anxiety or distress 

during the pandemic. 

 

5.0 Questions for Scrutiny to consider  

 

 How can we support the delivery of a collaborative approach across the Council 

and partners to raise awareness about issues of loneliness and social isolation 

and sources of help? 

 

 What else can we do to learn from people’s experiences to help identify gaps in 

our knowledge about what has worked well and what areas need to be 

strengthened? 
 

 How can we help to close the digital divide in the city in terms of adults having 

access to devices and Wi-Fi connectivity challenges? What kind of support do 

people want and how do they want support delivered? 
 

 How we can ensure the current offer is fully inclusive and works to overcoming 

the challenges detailed in the paper when using technology to help meet their 

social and care needs? 

 

 How can we build on the current success in adult social care in reaching and 

engaging with more adults across the City in the future? 
 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Title: Embedding equalities monitoring within Adults Services – which has been 
considered as part of a much wider piece of work across the council      
 
Date: 30th October 2020 
 
Prepared by: Jin Takhar  Job Title: Corporate Equality, Diversity & Inclusion Manager  
     
 
Intended 
Audience:  
 

 
1. Purpose of the Report  

 

To update Adult and Safer City Scrutiny Panel on the action being taken to embed 
equalities monitoring arrangements within Adults Services – as this is being considered 
as part of a much wider piece of work across the council.    

 

2. Recommendations  
  

Adult and Safer City Scrutiny Panel are invited to note: 

 the new supporting guidance on equalities monitoring of public serves- now in place 
for managers. See appendix one attached. 

 the progress made and findings to date as indicated within section four of this report  

 the agreed plan of action moving forward as indicated within section five of this report   

 

3. Background – providing context as to why equalities monitoring is        
important to public services.  

 
    Equality monitoring involves the routine collection of information about customers and staff 

on nine protected characteristics. Individuals and groups are at risk of discrimination and 
disproportionately poor outcomes based on these characteristics, unless services are 
designed to ensure this is not the case. Within this section of the report, the significant 
legal, moral and business benefits of doing this have been highlighted. 

           
    Equality monitoring is not simply about collecting this data but also involves storage, 

analysis, reporting and taking action based on findings. 
 
    The legal basis for equality was most recently laid out by the Equality Act 2010. As part of 

this, in the Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED), public bodies must consider and have due 
regard for the needs of diverse groups in a proportionate and relevant way, when 
designing, evaluating and delivering services. Compliance with this legal requirement aims 

Internal  ☒ Partner organisation  ☐ Public  ☐ Confidential  ☐ 

Page 19

Agenda Item No: 10



 

2 
 

 

to eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation, advance equality of opportunity, 
and foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic 
and persons who do not share it. Equality monitoring is vital in evidencing compliance with 
the PSED. 

 
    The “due regard” duty underpins a public authority’s need for equality monitoring of 

employees and services – without information indicating the usage, under-usage or non-
usage of a service by people who share one or more protected characteristics it is not 
possible to know definitively whether a service is being offered in a way that meets the 
needs of all sections of the community it serves – and thus meets the Public Sector 
Equality Duty.  

 
It is important to collect this information in a way that is proportionate and that does not 
cut-across other requirements, for example the General Data Protection Regulations.  
 
‘The moral rationale for promoting equality is one of fairness. All service providers have a 
duty to provide accessible and relevant services taking into account diverse needs, in 
addition to adhering to legal requirements. Equality monitoring would enable evaluation of 
whether services that are provided by the Council are accessible and appropriate across 
different characteristics. Where gaps are identified between the expected and actual 
uptake of services for certain equality groups, this can be explored. 
 
The business benefits of being an organisation that is serious about inclusion builds trust 
and social contracts with service users and other partners. Being able to design and deliver 
services that reduce rather than widen inequality for protected groups will support long 
term goals of improving wellbeing and raising the standard of living. Equality monitoring 
would underpin our ability to evidence that our policies and services respond to diverse 
needs and promote equality, for example by supporting an application for the ‘Excellence’ 
status of the Equality Framework for Local Government. 

 
     

4.  Progress made to date  
 
 We have introduced the new corporate guidance for managers setting out the 

importance and the requirements for equalities monitoring across council services – 
launched in April this year. Please note: the new corporate guidance for managers can 
be found in appendix one attached.  
 

 Prior to placing a blanket equality monitoring requirement across all services, it was 
agreed that we conduct a desk top assessment of all current practice in equalities 
monitoring across all Heads of Service. This desk top assessment involved conducting 
a survey asking all 52 heads of service what equalities data was collected and how this 
data was then being used. This enabled best practice and methodology to be identified, 
alongside areas in need of development. This piece of work was jointly led by the EDI 
team and the Insight & Performance team during the two-month period of June to July.  
 
 
 
 

Page 20



 

3 
 

 

 Analysis of findings during July/August identified that EDI data is being collected in 
several systems (24 systems in place) and the quality of the data and how it’s used to 
inform service delivery and monitor service equality outcomes is variable – however now 
improving. Directorates are becoming more aware of how much information there is and 
how this data can be used effectively. 

 
 The 24 systems that we work with do have the capability to record data, which is a 

positive picture , we are now looking at their full functionality and amending systems so 
that data across all nine protected characteristics can be collected (Mitel, Agresso, 
CareFirst, Childview ,Citizen Space, IDOX, Northgate, EIS – to name a few) . 

 
 We are also reviewing systems to find new solutions, for example the recording of 

equality data now built into the new CRM system – and will monitor this moving forward. 
 

 Insight and Performance team maintain a continued focus on producing service level 
equalities monitoring reports where information is available and some excellent 
examples of this includes: workforce data, YOT disproportionality data and exclusions 
data,   

 
5. Agreed plan of action moving forward  

 
 

 As part of the current development of service equality plans – a key equality priority 
that has emerged for the Strategy Directorate is to work across the council to improve 
equalities data, systems and monitoring.  

 
 As a result, an action plan is currently being developed and will shortly be in place to 

support each directorate in understanding what equalities data they do collect or are 
required to collect in their systems   how they use this information to shape and inform 
their service priorities and agree service level reports to monitor equality outcomes.   

   
 The action plan will continue to be developed based on feedback received from other 

directorates in terms of their needs and requirements, this to ensure we really 
triangulate and focus our energy in the right places and at the right time over the next 
6 months.  
 

 The first area of the council that will be given priority is Adult Services. The Insight 
and Performance team have already started to look at; 

      -  what data do ASC currently collect and record on our service users (domiciliary care,       
         Professional support, supported living, direct payments, etc.)? 
      -  what does the data tell us / is this data being used to inform service planning &  
         delivery   
      -  where are the gaps? 
      -  review systems (CareFirst) capacity & functionality to collect further data. 
      -  analysis of data by performance management teams – in collaboration with IP and   
         EDI colleagues to better understand/ agree next steps.    

 
 

 

 

Page 21



 

4 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 22



 

1 

 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

   Corporate Guidance on Equalities Monitoring of Public Services  

 

1. Requirements of the Public Sector Equality Duty PSED – section 149 of the 

Equalities Act 2010  

1.1 As equalities legislation develops there is a growing requirement to carry out equality 

analysis of our services. It is difficult to demonstrate that equalities duties have being 

met if monitoring data is not available or robust. So, although the legislation does not 

say you must produce equality monitoring data in service delivery, it is very difficult to 

see how we can fulfil our equality duties without such data. Monitoring results provide 

us with a benchmark for future planning of services against which progress can be 

measured.  

 

1.2 The Equality Act 2010 brought together previous equality legislation and strengthened 

and extended areas. The Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED) came into force in April 

2011.  

 

1.3 The PSED requires public bodies to consider, and have due regard to the needs of 

diverse groups in a proportionate and relevant way, when designing, evaluating and 

delivering services in order to:  

 

 eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that is 

prohibited by or under the Equality Act (2010);  

 advance, not merely promote, equality of opportunity for persons who share a 

relevant protected characteristic compared to persons who do not share it;  

 foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 

characteristic and persons who do not share it.  

       

1.4 Due regard is about taking into account and giving weight to different needs of 

protected groups in relation to the three aims of the duty. It is about addressing and 

preventing disadvantage for any protected group and taking the opportunity to 

promote equality and good relations where possible.  

 

       1.5    On-going Monitoring for Impact: Public sector equality duty is an on-going duty. 

Equality monitoring analysis information will enable us to assess and evaluate 

impacts and needs of diverse groups as an on-going activity and thus is integral to 

an effective implementation of our statutory and policy equality and diversity 

commitments. On-going monitoring for impact can draw upon a range of information, 

including complaints, user feedback, survey results as well as equality monitoring 

analysis.  

 

 

 

Page 23



 

2 

 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

 

2. Requirements of an excellent authority delivering excellent EDI practice   

  2.1   The ‘Excellence’ status of the Equality Framework for Local Government states that all 

services using information systems to monitor service outcomes need to ensure that 

service delivery monitoring reports are produced at specific and regular intervals and 

findings reported on, at least on an annual basis.  

 

2.2 Although we have some excellent practice in place within the various housing 

management agencies and within HR/employment, there is more work to be done to 

ensure key CWC public services also undertake effective equalities monitoring of 

services.  

 

3.     The business case for equalities monitoring of Public Services 

3.1   What is equalities monitoring  

3.2    Equality monitoring involves the collection of information about customers and staff. It 

is a very important part of tackling inequality and discrimination. It will help us to check 

whether the services we provide are meeting the needs of all our local communities.    

        Data to be collected should include details of a customers protected characteristics, 
this to include:        

 Age  

 Disability 

 Gender 

 Race 

 Religion or belief 

 Sexual orientation  

 Gender reassignment / gender identity  

 Marriage and civil partnership  

 Pregnancy and maternity  

         By collecting monitoring information, we will be able to provide evidence that we are 

reaching the people that need particular services and identify when we are not. It can 

help us identify barriers to services and areas for improvement. Equality monitoring by 

itself does not explain why a service is under or overused by some people. It provides 

a starting point for highlighting issues. This enables us to set realistic targets on how 

we can improve services to make them more inclusive.    

3.3  Monitoring people by equality groups is an essential tool in being able to identify 

inequalities. Findings of data analysed will enable us to take action to reduce and 

eliminate differences in service take up, service usage, service outcomes   

experienced by different groups of customers, potential customers and employees.  

           

Page 24



 

3 

 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

 

    3.4   Why monitor services?  

 

 3.5     Without equality monitoring we would lack the diagnostic tools required to identify with 

who our customers are? Who is or not using our services? How satisfied are different 

groups of customers? What outcomes are different groups experiencing?  

 

With this information we can plan and inform appropriate service developments and 

improvements that will close the gap for our diverse customers. Therefore, equality 

monitoring is an important diagnostic tool and necessary for effective service planning. 

 

3.6     Contrary to the common assumption that service users will be opposed to monitoring, 

many service users/job applicants now expect monitoring to happen and will take it as 

a positive sign that we are improving our equalities and service practice. Of course, 

some forms of monitoring are more established than others and staff will need to be 

equipped to answer any queries and objections about equality monitoring, especially 

some newer forms of monitoring such as sexual orientation or religion or belief.  

 

3.7     What should we monitor: 

 

We will need to prioritise which service areas of our services we need to monitor   and 

consider the following when doing so: 

 

 the time and resources needed to collect the data against how useful the data will 

be 

 what benefits it will yield in terms of service planning/improvement 

 There will also be the issue of relevance to consider. Will the data provide valuable 

information, which will support the development and review of services, employment 

policies or council wide strategies, projects and initiatives  

 The nine equality strands as indicated in 3.3. (where relevant and appropriate)  

 

3.8    Data needs to be collected on all nine equality strands - Please refer to appendix one 

attached for a model form.  

 

          The following questions can be used to assess how relevant services/functions are to 

each of these strands:  

 

 Is there evidence or reason to believe that some racial groups, women or men, 

groups of disabled people, people with different religions/beliefs and people of 

different sexual orientations and gender identity could be differently affected? 

 Which groups are affected?  

 What evidence is there/how much evidence do you have? 

Page 25



 

4 

 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

 Is there any public concern or perception that functions/policies are being operated 

in a discriminatory manner? 

 

3.9    Methods of Monitoring 

 

Through a questionnaire. This is the most common form of data collection. Questions 

about a person’s equalities profile are included in the main questionnaire/application 

form allowing whatever data is collected to be aggregated and disaggregated by 

equalities group. Examples are: job application, customer satisfaction surveys, council 

tax benefit applications, citizen’s panel questionnaires. 

 

Sampling. If the data is needed only as a snapshot of the customer group the data 

may be collected anonymously with no link being made to the individual, eg, employee 

survey, face to face customer satisfaction survey. This will limit analysis to a snapshot 

which may be repeated for comparison at regular intervals but will not allow tracking 

of individuals and groups through a service or employment process. 

 

      In some cases, you may be able to collect enough data through a sampling exercise. 

This could be a more cost-effective way of profiling your customers and their 

satisfaction. However, you will have to ensure that the sampling is representative and 

has not been skewed by an external or seasonal factor. An example of this type of 

sampling is the 24-hour sampling of people seeking services because of domestic 

abuse which is carried out nationally one a year. Other examples could be users of a 

sports centre over a one-month period rather than an exhaustive monitoring of every 

single service user entering the building. 

  Face to face or telephone monitoring. In some cases, answers to a questionnaire 

are recorded over the telephone or in a face-to-face survey. It is again important that 

staff explain to the respondent why the questions are being asked and what data will 

be used for (guidance for staff please contact the equalities team. 

 
3.10    In summary, the analysis of equalities monitoring data will help to:  

 Highlight inequalities in service take up, service usage, service outcomes 

 Investigate the causes of inequality 

 Take appropriate action to reduce and remove inequalities, resulting in service 

improvements.  

 identify policies, practice and services which negatively affect people from different 

communities  

 reveal discrimination  

 identify access issues and barriers to services 

 evidence the need for new or amended services  

 set realistic targets on how to tackle the issues  

 review service delivery  

Page 26



 

5 

 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

 measure the effectiveness of service changes   

 show the under or over-representation of a service by a particular community  

 reveal trends and patterns of concern and indicators of possible discriminatory 

impact   

Equality monitoring is central to ensuring that we continually improve our service 

delivery by enabling services to know who their customers are, look at possible diverse 

needs and barriers to equal access. Equality Monitoring importantly helps to ensure 

that our customer base is representative of the wider population.  

 

4.    Council Policy  

 
4.1   Effective equality monitoring will help us evaluate our implementation of the Council’s 

EDI policy.  

 

4.2   By appropriate and relevant monitoring, the Council can determine how well policies 

promote equality, whether there are levels of discrimination and how effective our 

employment or service delivery is in relation to the different equality groups.  

Critically, if we cannot measure or evaluate what we are doing, how can we effectively 

manage and ensure that we are meeting diverse needs?  

 

It also allows the council to show:  

 

 our services are delivered in a fair and equal way to all our customers  

 that customers who use our services are not further disadvantaged because of 

the way we deliver our services  

 how to shape new and existing services around customer needs  

 a generally increased understanding of the needs of non-users and our 

residents  

 find out whether customer satisfaction rates vary between different 

communities.  

 

4.3    Monitoring is more than just data collection  
 
It is important to regularly analyse and question the equality monitoring data, then 

follow up and tackle any barriers or failures it has highlighted. If information is just 

collected and not analysed it is a waste of time.  

Equality monitoring is a tool for the council to analyse the use and experiences of 

service delivery by different groups of people and, where necessary, to take 

appropriate action to improve those services. It is most useful when it is incorporated 

as part of a survey or consultation.  

 

Page 27



 

6 

 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

 

4.4   Other issues to consider. 

 

There is a need to be aware that some respondents, e.g. LGBT employees and service 

users, disabled people, people of different faiths may be particularly concerned about 

confidentiality in relation to how the data will be stored and used. Even when using 

anonymous data collection care should be taken to reassure people that the data will 

be treated carefully and sensitively. It is important to ensure that secure systems for 

storing data are in place to ensure that there is no risk of data misuse or breach of 

confidentiality. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 28



 

7 

 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

Appendix One  
 

Equal Opportunities Monitoring – Service Delivery 
 
Under the Equality Act 2010, the Council has a responsibility to ensure that we do not unfairly 

discriminate in the services we provide.  In order to help us ensure that our Equal Opportunities policy 

is working, would you please provide the following information by ticking the appropriate boxes. 

Providing this information is optional, and any information you provide will be treated in the 

strictest confidence and will only be used for statistical monitoring, to help ensure our services 

are accessible and remain responsive to everyone.  

 
Gender  Are you; 

Female        Male        Gender Neutral       Gender Fluid       Prefer not to say    

 

Gender reassignment / gender identity  

Is your gender identity the same as the gender you were assigned with at birth? 

Yes   No  Prefer not to say  

 
Ethnic Origin   Are you; 

Asian*        Black*  

Indian                            African                

Pakistani                 Caribbean                

Bangladeshi                 Other Black      

Chinese      

Other Asian        

 White 
                            British              

Dual Heritage   *      Irish     
White and Black African        Gypsy/ Irish traveller        
White and Black Caribbean       Other European              
White and Asian         Other White    
Other Mixed background        
                                                                     Other ethnic group*  

                                      Any other                 
Prefer not to say              

Disability 

Do you have a disability which affects your day to day activities, which has lasted, or you 

expect it to last at least a year? 

Yes   No   Not Sure  Prefer not to say  

 

Sexual Orientation Are you; 

Lesbian/gay woman   Gay man   Bisexual  Heterosexual/straight  Unsure  

Prefer not to say  

 
 

Page 29



 

8 

 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

Religion Are you; 

Buddhist   Christian   Hindu   Jewish   Muslim   Sikh     No Religion            Any 

other religion    Prefer not to say  

 

Age: Please indicate how old you are: 

Under 16   16 – 24   25 – 34    35 - 44   45 - 54   55 - 64    Over 65  

 

Please note: 

Details relating to marriage and civil partnership would be extracted from the personal 

data provided at the beginning of any service enquiry/request e.g. name and title and 

address.  

 

Further details relating to pregnancy and maternity would only be collected if appropriate 

and relevant to the service enquiry/ request    

 

 
 

Thank you 

Page 30



 

1 
 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

 

Scrutiny Work Programme (draft) 

Adults & Safer City Scrutiny Panel 2020-2021  

 Theme – Connected City 
  

P
age 31

A
genda Item

 N
o: 11



 

2 
 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

Contents Page Number 
Scrutiny – New Approach 
 

3 

Work Programme considerations 
 

4 

Adults and Safer City Scrutiny Panel draft work programme 
 

5-6 

Scrutiny Panel Remit & Functions 

 
7 

General Role of the Scrutiny Board and Scrutiny Panels  
 

8 

Appendix A: Roles – Chair, SEB Lead and Scrutiny Officer 
 

9 

 
  

P
age 32



 

3 
 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

Scrutiny – A New Approach – Connected City 
 

1. A new approach to scrutiny was agreed at Scrutiny Board on 14 July 2020. Scrutiny Board agreed a 
cross cutting theme for all panels. The agreed theme was ‘Connected City’. Connectivity and 
digital considerations will be considered as part of all items added to the work programme. 
 

2. Roles and expectations have been defined for the Chairs of Scrutiny Panels, Strategic Executive 
Board (SEB) leads and Scrutiny Officers; creating a collective understanding of scrutiny’s role within 
the Council.  These can be seen in Appendix A. 
 

3. Effective work planning and agenda setting will take place to produce jointly owned work 
plans.   
 

4. The first panel meetings will receive an update on the areas that fall within the scope of the panel.  
There will then be an introduction to the connected city theme. This will enable the Panel to 
consider items for the workprogramme in line with the ‘Connected City’ scrutiny theme.   
 

5. Regular briefings will be arranged with the Scrutiny Panel Chair, Vice Chair, SEB lead and scrutiny 
officer to enabe a shared understanding of priorities and reviews of progress and 
reccommendations. 
 

6. Improved communication:  ‘You said we did’ updates and publicity (including social media) 
 

7. Creation of a strong organisational culture that supports scrutiny work that adds real value and 
evidences impact. 
 

8. Outcomes and recommendations from all panels will then be fed back to Scrutiny Board to unify 
into one comprehensive report based on the connected city theme. 
 

P
age 33



 

4 
 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

 

Connected City – Adults and Safer City - Themes 

 
 
1. 50% of students in adult education unable to access equipment or have the skills for digital learning. 
 
2. Adult digital skills will increase job opportunities and jobs in digital sectors. 
 
3. Better HD CCTV, Smart Street lighting and traffic controls link to community safety. 
 
4. Improve isolation and loneliness and ability to remain at home longer or be discharged to home 

(link to Health).   

P
age 34



 

5 
 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

Work Programme considerations: 

 

1. Is the issue in the public interest? 
 
2. How does it link to the Connected City theme? 
 
3. How can scrutiny add value by looking at it? 
 
4. Where is the evidence to support looking at this issue? 

 
5. Can we evidence impact? 
 
6. Is there a change to National Policy? 
 
7. Does it affect citizens across the City? 
 
8. Are there performance concerns? 
 
9. Is it a safety issue? 
  

P
age 35



 

6 
 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

Adults and Safer City Scrutiny Panel   
 

Chair: Cllr Val Evans  
  

Vice Chair: Cllr Simon 
Bennett  
  

SEB Lead: David Watts  
  

Scrutiny Lead: Earl Piggott-
Smith  
  

  
  

Date of   
Meeting  
  

Agenda 
Publication  

Item Description  Lead Report 
Author  
  

Council Plan 
Priority  
 

Strong, resilient 
and healthy 
communities 
 

 

Connected 
City 
Theme 

Notes  

15 September 
2020  

7 
September 
2020  

 Adults & Safer 
City update – to 
include current 
guidance on visiting 
care homes and 
deprivation gaps  
 

 Work planning  
  

David Watts     

17 November 
2020  

9 November 
2020  

 Draft Budget and 

Medium-Term 

Financial Strategy 
 
 Issues relating to 
loneliness & 
isolation – Voluntary 
and Digital 
Solutions   

James Barlow  
  
   
 
Sandra Aston-
Jones 
 

 

 

   

P
age 36



 

7 
 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

 
 WVSC Social 
Prescribing Support 
to Connect project 
 
 
 
 

 

 Corporate 
Guidance on 
Equalities 
Monitoring of Public 
Services  
 

 Draft work 
programme 

 

Linda Stone and 
Ian Darch, 
Wolverhampton 
Voluntary Sector 
Council, Social 
Prescribing 
Project 
 

David Pattison/  
Jin Takar   

19 January 
2021  

 11 January 
2021  

 Care home 
market sustainability 
and service 
providers  

 

 

 Domestic Abuse 
and Violence Bill 
2020 Consultation  

 
 Draft work 
programme 
 

Emma Bennett/ 
Becky 
WilkinsonLead 
Commissioners/  
Care Providers  
 

Lynsey Kelly 
/Hannah Pawley  
 

   

16 March 
2021  
  
  

 8 March 
2021 

 Community Safety 
Update  

 

John Denley/  
Lynsey Kelly  
 

   

P
age 37



 

8 
 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

  Brefing on the 
project Power2  
 
 Portfolio Holder 
Statement and 
Question Time – 
Cllr Jasbir Jaspal 
and Cllr Linda 
Leach 

 
 Draft work 
programme 

Sandra Aston-
Jones 
 
Emma 
Bennett/John 
Denley 

Future topics 
dates to be 
agreed 

  Briefing on 
implementing 
changes to 
deprivation of liberty 
safeguards to be 
introduced in April 
2022 to be replaced 
by Liberty 
Protection 
Safeguards 
regulations 

Emma Bennett    

 
  

P
age 38



 

9 
 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

Scrutiny Panel Remit & Functions 

 
Adults and Safer City Scrutiny Panel    
   
The scrutiny of services for older and vulnerable adults, local safeguarding arrangements for adults and crime and disorder in the 
city.    

     

Specific responsibilities   
  
The Panel will have responsibility for scrutiny functions as they relate to:   
   

 Older people assessment and care management  
 Financial support services   
 Libraries and community hubs   
 Independent living centre  
 Commissioning older people   
 Carers support  
 All age disabilities (disabilities)   
 All age disability (provision)   
 Safeguarding and quality   
 Community safety   

  
  
  

P
age 39



 

10 
 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

General Role of the Scrutiny Board and Scrutiny Panels  
  
Within the terms of reference set out in the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure 
Rules, the Scrutiny Board will:  
  

1. Co-ordinate the work of the Scrutiny Panels and Scrutiny Review Groups.  
  

2. Receive annual reports from the Councillor Champion and give consideration to the work undertaken and issues that the 
Councillor Champion wishes scrutiny to consider investigating further.  

  
3. Maintain regular dialogue with the Cabinet on service improvement, performance management of cross-cutting issues, policy 

development and budgetary provision.  
  

4. Oversee and ensure access to appropriate learning and development for scrutiny Councillors.  
  

5. Discharge the call-in procedures relevant to its overarching role.  
  

  

The Scrutiny Panels will:  
  

1. Maintain regular dialogue with the Cabinet, Scrutiny Board and Councillor Champions.  
 

2. Ensure that members of the public and stakeholders are informed of and involved in issues within the remit of each Panel.  
  

3. Discharge the call-in procedure relevant to their terms of reference.  

 
 

 

  

P
age 40



 

11 
 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

Appendix A: Roles and Responsibilities 

1. Chair of Scrutiny Panel:  
• To attend fortnightly meetings with the SEB lead and Scrutiny Officer 
• To attend agenda setting meetings and other relevant briefings on a regular basis 
• To contribute to the work planning for the panel and to bring forward relevant topics and issues for inclusion 
• To chair meetings in a fair and open way and to encourage participation from panel members 
• To attend Scrutiny Board (where appropriate) to provide feedback and updates on progress 
• To prepare, when possible, questions in advance of a meeting to allow for healthy debate and to ensure that 

clear resolutions are made that add value and show impact 
• To act as champion for scrutiny and to represent the best interests of the citizens of Wolverhampton 

2. SEB Lead:  
• Meet with the Chair, the Vice Chair and the Scrutiny Officer fortnightly to discuss upcoming issues, updates 

from previous meetings, workplans and any other relevant business as agreed by all parties.  
• Recommend topics for inclusion on the workplan, working proactively with the Chair, Vice Chair and Scrutiny 

Officer to address any issues/opportunities/challenges that fit with the remit of the panel.  
• To advise on the viability of any issues put forward by the panel for inclusion on the work plan. 
• To attend relevant Scrutiny Panel meetings and provide an update at each meeting on any relevant issues 

within the remit of the panel.  Also, attending Scrutiny Board (as appropriate) to provide feedback. 
• To act as a champion for scrutiny in the Council and to encourage engagement with the scrutiny function and 

promote a healthy culture within which scrutiny can thrive 

3. Scrutiny Officer:  
• Provide support and guidance to the panel, its members, officers, partners and other stakeholders regarding 

the scrutiny function 
• To ensure openness and transparency in the scrutiny function and to make sure that information is 

continuously shared and communicated between all relevant parties in a timely and suitable fashion 
• To ensure that the appropriate persons are invited to meetings and that they are given adequate time to 

prepare and to provide guidance and support where appropriate 
• To manage the administration of all relevant panels and meetings within statutory timescales 
• To carry out research and information gathering exercises when required 
• To provide advice on policy and legislation where appropriate 
• To ensure that all resolutions are followed up and responses or actions fed back, monitored and recorded 
• To act as liaison between the Chair and the SEB lead to ensure a shared understanding of priorities and work 

planning.  
• To manage the agreed work plan and its outcomes to show impact and added value 

P
age 41



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 Minutes of previous meeting (15.9.2020)
	9 Community and digital solutions to tackle issues of loneliness and social isolation
	10 Corporate Guidance on Equalities Monitoring of Public Services
	corporate guidance equalities monitoring

	11 Adults and Safer City Scrutiny Panel 2019 20 - Draft Work Programme

